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CALL TO ORDER 
 

The Chair, Sen. Katz, called the Government Oversight Committee to order at 9:02 a.m. in the Cross Office 

Building. 

 

ATTENDANCE 
 

 Senators:   Sen. Katz, Sen. Johnson, Sen. Burns, Sen. Davis, Sen. Diamond and 

Sen. Gerzofsky  

 

 Representatives:   Rep. Kruger, Rep. McClellan, Rep. Campbell, Rep. Duchesne,  

      Rep. Mastraccio and Rep. Sanderson 

       

 Legislative Officers and Staff:  Beth Ashcroft, Director of OPEGA 

      Etta Connors, Adm. Secretary, OPEGA     

     

INTRODUCTION OF GOVERNMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 

The members of the Government Oversight Committee introduced themselves for the benefit of the listening 

audience.   

     

Information Brief of State Funding for Good Will-Hinckley   

 

Chair Katz said on July 1, 2015 the GOC charged OPEGA to determine the facts associated with alleged proposed 

changes to the State’s Fiscal Year 2016 and 2017 Department of Education Funding for Good Will-Hinckley 

(GWH) and the impact of those proposed changes to the School.  OPEGA’s Information Brief for State Funding 

for GWH was presented to the GOC on September 8, 2015.  The Committee scheduled the Public Comment 

Period on the Information Brief for today’s meeting.   

 

Chair Katz said the GOC often invites people involved in a review to a meeting to answer Committee members’ 

questions.  He noted that four invitations were extended to people involved in some significant role in the events.  

The Committee invited Cynthia Montgomery, Chief Legal Counsel, Governor’s Office, who has declined to 

appear citing as a reason the pending lawsuit brought by Speaker Eves against the Governor.  Ms. Montgomery 

did provide a written response letter which is attached to the Meeting Summary.   
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Chair Katz said the GOC invited Aaron Chadbourne, Senior Policy Advisory, Office of the Governor.  Mr. 

Chadbourne also declined to appear citing the same reasons as Ms. Montgomery. 

 

Tom Desjardin, Acting Commissioner of the Department of Education, was invited.  Chair Katz said 

Commissioner Desjardin expressed a willingness to appear, but he is legitimately unable to do so because of a 

medical issue.  He did express a willingness to answer questions in writing which he did not receive in time, but 

the Commissioner did submit a letter to the Committee.  A copy of the letter is attached to the Meeting Summary.   

 

Chair Katz said the GOC invited Jack Moore, Chairman of the Board of GWH.  Mr. Moore was at the meeting to 

answer Committee members’ questions. 

 

Chair Katz explained what the GOC’s process regarding GWH would be at the meeting.  Director Ashcroft will 

provide the Committee with additional information received since the September 8
th
 meeting.  The Committee 

will invite Mr. Moore to make any statement he wishes and also to answer questions which members of the GOC 

may have.  Following Mr. Moore the meeting will open for public comment.   

 

Chair Katz said after the public comment period the Committee will go into a work session to determine what, if 

any, further steps the GOC may wish to take based on what has been learned to date.   

 

Chair Katz noted that the GOC is following exactly the same process they follow in every review.  The goal of all 

the members of the Committee is to get all the facts out because they are a fact-finding committee at this point.  

He reminded everyone that the scope of the GWH review is fairly limited and the public comments period is not 

about other matters that might involve the Governor and accordingly anyone who wishes to speak is asked to 

confine their remarks to the scope of the review.   

 

Director Ashcroft said the GOC had several questions at the September 8
th
 meeting and referred them to the 

document in their notebook.  (Attached to the Meeting Summary is the Information Requested by GOC at the 

September 8, 2015 GOC Meeting.)   

 

Director Ashcroft noted that in addition to the questions, the Committee tasked OPEGA with conducting an 

interview with Bill Brown because they did not interview him during the review.  OPEGA thought it was more 

valid to learn from the others at GWH what role he had played then necessarily hear it directly from him.  

OPEGA felt they had gotten a good sense of Mr. Brown’s role from other Board members they spoke with, as 

well as GWH management and staff and could see what his involvement was by reviewing the recruitment and 

selection documentation that GWH gave OPEGA access to.   

 

Director Ashcroft said OPEGA interviewed Mr. Brown as requested by the GOC and his description of his role in 

the recruitment and selection process is consistent with what they learned from other people.  He did review and 

prioritize all the nineteen applications that were received to determine who should be interviewed, he did not 

make any comment on whether Speaker Eves should be interviewed or not and he did participate in the telephone 

interviews with five of the candidates.  Mr. Brown did not participate in the telephone interview with Speaker 

Eves and also recused himself at any point a decision was to be made, or an interview was to be conducted 

involving anyone he knew that was an applicant.  He was present at the Board meetings with both candidates, but 

his role was only to open and preside over the meeting and categorized the MeANS Board as guests and the GWH 

Board did the voting.  Mr. Brown did participate in the May 13
th
 informal meeting that Chairman Moore arranged 

in Brunswick with the top two candidates.  The MeANS Board thought it was important to have a representative 

of their Board at the meeting since it was a departure from the process that had been laid out and because no one 

else from MeANS was available Mr. Brown went.  He said the discussion with each candidate was different, but 

the purpose of the meetings was to discuss questions they felt had not been completely addressed in the interviews 

up to that point.  Mr. Brown recollected that the primary questions for Speaker Eves were in regard to his future 

political ambitions.   

 

Director Ashcroft said Mr. Brown said he made Speaker Eves aware of the employment opportunity after the 

former President of GWH had approached him and asked him specifically to relay to Speaker Eves that the 
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opening was available.  She said Mr. Brown said he did not have any role in determining whether the Speaker’s 

contract should be terminated.  That was a vote of the GWH Board.  Mr. Brown did not recall having any 

conversations with any Board members about Mr. Eves as a candidate.   

 

Director Ashcroft noted that Commissioner Desjardin contacted her after he had forwarded his letter to the GOC 

saying the GOC might have questions about why the two payments for the other schools on the same payment 

schedule as GWH went forward when GWH’s did not.  His explanation was he was unaware at the time that the 

GWH payment was held that the checks for the other two schools were also in progress.  The Director of School 

Finance for DOE did not happen to mention those particular payments.  He also wanted to make the point that 

those two schools are somewhat different than GWH in that they are State owned schools and there is a statutory 

requirement in place to fund them, but there is no statutory requirement to provide funding for GWH.   

 

Sen. Diamond referred to the Governor’s handwritten note and asked for clarification of what the Governor’s 

Office exact response was.  Director Ashcroft said the exact response was the Governor’s Office does not have 

any copies of the personal note to Mr. Moore. 

 

Chair Katz referred to Acting Commissioner Desjardin’s October 13, 2015 letter that sets out the justification for 

why the funding to GWH was held up.  He said when he reviewed OPEGA’s report there was some discussion 

from OPEGA staff interviews with Commissioner Desjardin in which he talked about that issue.  Chair Katz 

believed the Commissioner’s letter added additional reasons which were not disclosed earlier.  He asked Director 

Ashcroft if that was so.  Director Ashcroft said many of the points in Commissioner Desjardin’s letter were not 

something OPEGA understood to be part of the Commissioner’s thinking process at the time he made the 

decision.  In OPEGA’s first interview with him he indicated that he was talking with his Lead Team about the fact 

that this issue was arising between the Governor and Speaker, he did not mention anything about the GWH 

funding, but the Director of Finance offered the fact that the payment was in the process and asked if she should 

hold it.  Commissioner Desjardin indicated to OPEGA in that interview that after he made that decision and was 

later thinking about the decision he made that he started to feel that it was the best decision because the budget 

was not enacted yet and they still had $1.5 million they had to find.  The Commissioner did indicate in interviews 

with OPEGA that the budget situation was part of this, although it seemed to OPEGA that came as an 

afterthought about why his decision made sense.  Director Ashcroft said there was no written agreement in place 

governing the use of the funds that OPEGA observed. She said it did not appear to OPEGA that DOE discovered 

there was no written contract, or the written contract had expired, until after the payment was held and DOE 

began researching what had been going on with GWH.  She said DOE did not know right away that they had a 

contract issue.  The Acting Commissioner stated in his letter to the GOC that GWH had no immediate need for 

the funds and quotes the Ethics Commission letter of June 11
th
.  That letter came out two days after he made the 

decision, so while it is context around whether it was a sound decision to withhold the payment, it is not 

something that was part of the Commissioner’s decision-making at the time.   

 

Director Ashcroft referred to “4.” in Commissioner Desjardin’s letter where he said DOE still needed to make 

$1.5 million in cuts from the budget categories that included the GWH funds.  He states the Legislature made cuts 

to those categories, but at no time did it communicate to DOE where the reduction should come from.  She 

wanted to point out that, as mentioned in OPEGA’s Information Brief, OPEGA does have emails between 

Commissioner Desjardin and one of the Governor’s Senior Policy Advisors occurring in late June that references 

the fact that the reductions were supposed to come from the technology line item for their 30 year computer 

system.  Director Ashcroft was not certain where the Commissioner got that information, but it seems something 

must have been conveyed to him that was the Legislature’s initial intent.   

 

Chair Katz asked if there was any discussion about cutting the discretionary funding to GWH on the 

Appropriations and Financial Affairs (AFA) Committee.  Director Ashcroft said there was never any discussion 

that OPEGA was aware of either at the AFA Committee or in the discussions that the Legislative Leadership had 

regarding the budget.   

 

Sen. Johnson said Director Ashcroft had noted there was correspondence that indicated to DOE that what should 

be cut was in the technology area.  Director Ashcroft said there were emails between the Commissioner of DOE 
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and Governor’s Office where they talked about what changes the Legislature had made to the budget and about 

the $1.5 million in reductions being associated with the 30 year old computer system. 

 

The Committee recognized Jack Moore, Chairman, GWH Board and GWH’s legal counsel, Daniel Nuzzi. 

 

Mr. Moore said he joined the GWH Board about five years ago and did so because GWH changes lives.  He said 

every teacher, the entire staff and the Board is committed to GWH and every action they take is all to benefit the 

kids they serve.  He said that GWH is a crucial part of Maine and the resources offered are unique and are much 

needed.  Mr. Moore said the Board is committed to the staff and students, who have much to offer to society, but 

need a little bit different path to success.   

 

Mr. Moore said the Board has consistently acted as fiduciaries and worked tirelessly to keep GWH on the path for 

long-term sustainability.  He said their job is to serve the staff, students and people of Maine who all benefit from 

the institution.   

 

Mr. Moore said GWH does change lives and that is seen every day.  He gave several examples of current students 

enrolled at GWH noting that the School changes lives and is why the staff, teachers and Board are all enthusiastic 

about its’ future.        

 

Committee members’ comments and questions included: 

 

Rep. Sanderson said in OPEGA’s report there is a unique and extensive set of criteria that GWH was looking for 

in the role of whoever was hired as President of the School.  She said by the end of the report, that criteria had 

changed significantly and asked why.  Mr. Moore said GWH had a thorough hiring process that included a 

nationwide search.  They got a number of applicants and as the process moved forward, they narrowed down the 

applicants.  He said it is a unique position.  It is outward facing and the School has a strong leadership and staff 

that do very well day-to-day.  They looked at the applicants they had in how they could best support the existing 

staff.  Mr. Moore said there was some ability for them to be a little tactical and there were some areas that became 

more apparent for what they needed.  Robert Moody, the current Interim President, has done a fabulous job and 

the Board wanted to work around his skill sets to make sure that they utilized him to the fullest of his abilities and 

serve the School by finding somebody that would complement him and his senior leadership.  The job did evolve 

a bit, but it became a process of looking at the applicants and deciding what would best complement the staff.   

 

Rep. Sanderson noted GWH had numerous applicants and asked if there were individuals who both fit the 

outward facing role, as well as fit many of the criteria for which GWH originally advertised the job particularly 

extensive education background and experience.  Mr. Moore said there were no applicants that fit it to a “T” so it 

became clear, as they went through the applications, that they needed to prioritize what was important for them 

and look at the strength of each applicant and weigh how that would most benefit GWH.  Mr. Moore said there 

was no applicant that they could checkmark everything and say this is the person.  It became clear as they went 

through the process that they needed to reflect on the qualifications of the applicants and arrive at who they felt 

would best complement the GWH staff. 

 

Chair Katz said he counted at least seventeen different interactions Mr. Moore had with somebody in State 

government with respect to the hiring decision.  He said the Board unanimously decided to hire Speaker Eves as 

its next President, that the Governor learned of that decision, the Governor reacted negatively and through 

himself, and other representatives from his office, essentially said if you hire Speaker Eves your funding from the 

State is very much in jeopardy.  That triggered the Alfond Foundation to question its own continuing commitment 

if there was no longer going to be State funding and, in light of that, Mr. Moore’s Board made the decision, in 

their fiduciary capacity that it would have to withdraw its offer to Speaker Eves and look elsewhere.  Chair Katz 

asked if that was a fair summary of what happened.  Mr. Moore said from a high level some of the parts were not 

as explicit, but they did react and there were interactions with State government, and other parties, where other 

portions of their funding became in question.  Chair Katz asked if that was the Alfond Foundation in particular.  

Mr. Moore said that was correct.  Chair Katz asked if there was anything he had just said that Mr. Moore would 
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quarrel with.  Mr. Moore said they did vote for Mark Eves, part of the funding did come into question from the 

State, so from a high level Chair Katz was correct. 

 

Rep. Mastraccio asked if Mr. Moore was the person who received the handwritten communication from the  

Governor’s Office and, if so, could he tell the Committee, in his own words, exactly what it said.  Mr. Moore said 

there has never been a question of him not remembering what it said.  He believed the Governor recognized in his 

note a note Mr. Moore had written to him.  Mr. Moore said he sent a note because he was working hard to 

minimize the effect on Hinckley by both sides and was trying to keep to a diplomatic dialogue.  The Governor’s 

response to that was a handwritten note.  The note did suggest that the Governor would have trouble supporting 

Hinckley in light of hiring Mark Eves.  The formal letter that was written a few days later indicated that also.    

 

Rep. Mastraccio said she would like to know, for the record and in Mr. Moore’s own words, specifically what the 

note said.  Mr. Moore said the one element that he did say is that he would have trouble supporting GWH if we 

were to hire, Mr. Moore believes there were two words and one was scribbled out, but he did refer to Mark Eves 

as a hack.  He said it was a short letter.   

 

Sen. Diamond said his memory was that the Board in fact did have an indication of the Governor’s displeasure 

with hiring the Speaker before the May 15
th
 unanimous vote.  Mr. Moore said that was correct.  Sen. Diamond 

asked Mr. Moore if, he then had a meeting with the Commissioner of Education and offered the Commissioner 

the job a week later on May 22
nd

.  Mr. Moore said no.  The Board had voted that Mark Eves was the guy they had 

selected.  He was not hired until things were negotiated and the contract was signed.  Mr. Moore firmly believed 

that Mark Eves was the guy they would like to hire and he was not hired until they finalized that part of the 

process.  Sen. Diamond said he understands that, but said the vote was taken on May 15
th
 to hire the Speaker.  Mr. 

Moore said that was correct.  Sen. Diamond wanted to clarify that then in fact the job was offered to the 

Commissioner.  Mr. Moore said he had a lunch meeting with the Commissioner that was organized well before 

this, and it did come up because he had concerns that this could be something that could impact Hinckley.  He 

said everything that they have done is about serving Hinckley’s best interest as a fiduciary and the Commissioner 

seemed to be somebody he could be a little candid with and ask how he felt about Mark Eves.  He did not get the 

feeling that it was positive and so he was curious about what direction the Commissioner thought that they should 

have gone.  Mr. Moore said the Commissioner had answers for that and they were very direct.  Mr. Moore did not 

recall, but would not be surprised that perhaps the Commissioner’s level of enthusiasm and his level of 

disapproval over Mark Eves, left him (Mr. Moore) with the notion that this might be something the Commissioner 

was interested in and that would probably be the only context in which he (Mr. Moore) would have asked that.  

Mr. Moore said he did not recall asking it, so he could say it was not a meaningful part of the conversation.  It was 

not an agenda, it was not an offer.   

 

Sen. Diamond asked if Mr. Moore could clarify whether the hiring of Speaker Eves was for political reasons.  Mr. 

Moore said the GWH Board was well represented by both sides of the aisle and it was not an opportunity for them 

to partner with either party.  They maintained political independence.  Mr. Moore said it is an outward facing job, 

it needs to be somebody that can be GWH’s spokesperson.  The Speaker is a good communicator and that was a 

skill set that attracted them.  Their view was that he could probably raise money.  It was not that they gave 

consideration to wanting to have a politician represent GWH.  It was that politicians tend to have the skill sets of 

being good public speakers and that is a key part.  GWH has a great staff that can manage the on-campus goings 

on of GWH, they needed somebody who was outward facing and the Speaker has a good skill set for outward 

reflecting communications.   

 

Rep. Kruger said he was trying to better understand Mr. Moore’s relationship with the Governor and assumed that 

his relationship with the Governor was through Acting Commissioner Desjardin.  Mr. Moore said there would 

also be an occasional aide that he would converse with.  He asked, after Mr. Moore read OPEGA’s report, was 

there any consistency with his perception of the May 22
nd

 lunch versus what was in the report in which the 

Commissioner felt he was being offered the job.  Mr. Moore said that did jump out at him.  He said he certainly 

does not recall saying would you like the job, it was not a job offer, but it would not surprise him if he said is this 

something you are interested in.  It would be along the lines of diplomacy not looking to refill the job.  Mr. Moore 

described his efforts as treading on eggshells and trying to appease everybody involved, noting that Hinckley 
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surely did not seek the limelight, and he has tried to minimize any anxiety from any parties and is what they have 

been aiming to do.   

 

Chair Katz said GWH learned that their State funding was very much in jeopardy if they hired Speaker Eves, but 

the next shoe that dropped was Mr. Moore hearing from the Alfond Foundation that if the State funding was not 

going to be there that maybe the Alfond funding may not be either.  In fact, the money from the Alfond 

Foundation was much more than the State’s appropriation.  He asked if Mr. Moore knew how the Alfond 

Foundation learned that this was going on.  There seems to be communications to Mr. Moore from the Alfond 

Foundation before the matter became public.  Mr. Moore said he talks to them on a regular basis.  They are an 

important constituent and a big supporter.  Mr. Moore said they did not need the letter from the Alfonds to know 

they were in trouble with the funding there.  The Alfond grant came with very articulated stipulations about 

maintaining financial integrity and an assessment was done prior to getting the first installment of the Alfond 

grant.  GWH passed, but it was not by a landslide so the Board knew that a change to this degree would likely 

jeopardize their ability to maintain the metrics that the Alfonds were requiring.  Mr. Moore said in respect of that 

they did try to keep a dialogue with them so he thinks they were aware of developments throughout.  He said he 

talked with Greg Powell at least once, maybe twice, and said they could have learned of it from him.  He thinks 

his role is to embrace key stakeholders and make sure that he can minimize surprises.  It is an effort in diplomacy 

that they don’t want to lose people along the way.  Mr. Moore thought their Board did a good job throughout the 

whole process.  GWH is on a great trajectory, is on the way to bringing enrollment to 200 students that will take a 

big dent out of the dropout rate in Maine and have a positive effect.  He said they are very proud and that is what 

motivates the staff, teachers and Board members.   

 

Sen. Johnson referred to the handwritten note and asked if Mr. Moore could say what the deposition of the note is, 

what happened to it.  Mr. Moore said he did have the note for a while, the whole thing had gotten old and the note 

certainly was not something that made him want to keep it as a memento so it did end up in a pile that was 

heading for the dumpster.   

 

Rep. Mastraccio was trying to figure out at what point Mr. Moore realized that the Governor was going to 

influence the process and at what point he realized there was an issue.  Was it when he had lunch with the Acting 

Commissioner?  OPEGA’s report said it was a fair hiring process, thorough, the candidate rose to the top, etc. so 

at what point did he realize there was going to be some punishment if the Speaker was hired.  Mr. Moore said he 

thought the OPEGA staff did a pretty thorough job of putting the report together.  There were a few revelations 

for him because he is not on top of every aspect, but felt it was a fairly written report.  Mr. Moore said throughout 

the interview process there were another round of interviews to make sure they were hiring somebody who could 

be effective on both sides of the aisle and be most effective for GWH.  He would phrase the meeting with the 

Commissioner as a yellow flag, and the red flag came from Rich Ambramson, the Interim President for GWH 

who received a call, or a direct communication, from the Governor.  He  said it became less opaque as the 

Governor’s formal letter came out that he did not approve of Mark Eves.  Mr. Moore said he would not say that 

the Board construed it as a punishment, but as he was taking action because he does not approve of the hire.  At 

the time the formal letter came, it became evident that they needed to act and it was not the State funding alone 

($530,000), it was the fact that put into jeopardy another source of significant funding and absent that funding, 

they could be in default of a loan.  Mr. Moore said he didn’t think people, much less Mark Eves, knew that this 

series of events could be triggered.  Throughout the process they were focused on fulfilling their fiduciary duties 

and would not have been doing that if they were to go down a road leading to a series of defaults that would put 

the existence of Hinckley in question.   

 

Rep. Mastraccio said Mr. Moore talked about the effect of one funding source on the other and asked if he 

believed that that is in fact what would have happened.  Mr. Moore said it was definitely a series of events that 

would transpire.  The Board did feel that they did not have to act immediately because July 1
st
 was a date that they 

had to act by.  He said he thinks the Board did a good job of remaining objective, and of not operating on a 

schedule that would prevent them from consistently acting in the School’s best interest.  Rep. Mastraccio asked if 

Mr. Moore showed the Governor’s note to anybody else.  He said maybe to his wife, he knows that it did not 

leave the house. 
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Rep. McLellan commented on what a great job people do at GWH.  He asked if Mr. Moore knew who gave the 

Alfond letter to the press.  Mr. Moore said he did not know, but knew that GWH did not.   

 

Rep. McLellan was trying to figure out if something bad happened here in this whole situation, or if it was just 

politics and that is the way the game is played.  He asked Mr. Moore if, in his view, the whole GWH thing was 

really just the political process and you have to play the game, or did he feel that there was really a threat to his 

school.  Mr. Moore said absent the funding it would have been threatening for the school.  He and other Board 

members have avoided taking political sides.  They are truly a-political and if there is one thing that you can see it 

is that the Board is well represented by both parties and they have gone out of their way to keep their heads down 

and to not fan the flames in the process.   

 

Rep. Sanderson referred to OPEGA’s Report and said in October, 2012 there was discussion of not including 

funding for GWH in the FY 14/15 budget and that GWH established a two year plan to shore up their financial 

position to become independent of the State funding.  She asked what happened to the twenty-four month plan 

where they were not able to become independent of the State funds.  In the Alfond Foundation letter to GWH it 

does not specifically say the Foundation is going to be pulling funding, it merely says they want to re-evaluate 

GWH’s books to see that the stability is going to be there going forward.  She said Mr. Moore said it would put 

the School in jeopardy, but in the Ethics Commission’s letter to the Speaker there is discussion that should the 

funding go away, the School would still remain solvent.  She also noted that even though GWH had the two year 

plan, in 2013 they hired a lobbyist to make sure that funding would remain in place and then again in 2014 hired a 

lobbyist and included the funding from the State as part of GWH’s grant application to the Alfond Foundation.  

Mr. Moore said the plan to be independent of the State funding was the focus of GWH all along.  What became 

clear, as far as sustainability, is that they needed to rebuild the School, they needed to grow enrollment and they 

were curtailed on enrollment with the current environment that they had.  He said when he joined the GWH Board 

they had close to a one million dollar deficit and the School has made tremendous progress toward financial 

sustainability.  He thinks that remarkable success, particularly around 2012, led them to believe that they could 

bring enrollment up to 200 students.  As they do that they can allocate their fixed costs over a wider population.  

Mr. Moore said GWH’s Director of Finance at the time did indicate to the Ethics Commission that he felt the 

School could work through the lack of funding and the GOC would have to ask him for his reasoning behind that.  

It was clear to Board members that although they passed the scrutiny for the grant application, it was not with 

flying colors, and absent the State funding they assumed they would not be given the grant funds.  So, when                       

they got word of the Foundation’s plan to do another assessment it would have been imprudent for the Board to 

not act given the heads up.  Mr. Moore said the Board was very proactive and felt, on both fronts, there were 

reasonable threats and they were concerned about their funding.   

 

Rep. Sanderson said according to the Report there were a lot of questions about potential concerns the Governor 

would have should Speaker Eves be hired for the position.  There was a lot of discussion regarding potential 

funding loss, yet the Board chose to go forward.  Mr. Moore said they chose to go forward in the beginning 

because they did not have to make a decision at that time and thinks the Board did a very good job remaining 

objective and taking a step back to recognize what they needed to do by a particular date.  He thought their 

immediate inaction was a thoughtful approach and the Board weighed all of its options, explored all their 

possibilities and did not jump to a conclusion.  While there is going to be room to second guess any decision, 

particularly as time goes on, he thinks it is a prudent act to avoid mistakes.   

 

Sen. Burns noted that Mr. Moore had said that the Board had made a great effort to find somebody that was out 

facing who would represent GWH and gain support in the community.  He noted Mr. Moore also had said GWH 

had a well- balanced Board and were equipped to make decisions.  He asked, given all the history of angst 

between the Governor and the Speaker that the GWH Board must have been aware of, was that a concern for the 

Board that maybe selecting the Speaker might bring about this type of conflict.  Did that ever come up in the 

Board’s discussions and screening process?   Mr. Moore said the Board never envisioned being before the GOC.  

They did feel there was a potential risk and that is why they injected a third round of interviews to flush that out.  

There were a few things, as Board members, they wanted to flush out and wanted to make sure they had 

somebody that would be fully engaged to do the job.  The Board explored and asked, at various times, about the 

Speaker’s relationship with the Governor.  He said his perception is that they were entering a perfect storm and, at 
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the time the Board was going through the process of hiring, it was probably the height of the storm between the 

Governor and the Speaker and his party and that did not make things easier.  Mr. Moore said he is not going to 

second guess the answers he got from the Speaker.  He will say perhaps things had changed from the start of the 

recruitment process to the ultimate decision.   

 

Rep. Duchesne said the State funds are public money so there is a whole public process that happens before 

money is ever given to anybody.  There are qualifications that are set, the recipient has to be deemed to be 

qualified, etc.  He asked if there was a claim from the Governor’s Office, the Governor himself, or the Acting 

Commissioner that hiring Speaker Eves would trigger a failure to meet the qualifications that GWH had met in 

order to receive the funds in the first place.  Mr. Moore said, summarizing a series of conversations, they felt they 

would not be responsible in continuing to support us.   

 

Chair Kruger asked for Mr. Moore’s personal opinion on whether he thought it was appropriate and proper for a 

State Chief Executive to insert himself into the internal affairs of an institution.  Mr. Nuzzi said Mr. Moore was at 

the meeting as a volunteer and has been trying to remain above the political fray.  Therefore, he would advise Mr. 

Moore to not answer.      

 

Sen. Johnson asked, given statute, bylaws, etc., where the sole authority for making hiring and firing decision for 

the President of GWH rested.  Mr. Moore said it rested with the Board of GWH.  Sen. Johnson wanted to confirm 

that the Board received feedback from the Governor, among other parties, about the decision they made.  Mr. 

Moore said they did.  The process was inclusive and included the MeANS Board, and to some degree, staff and 

teachers.  He said at the end of the day he would say there was probably more input from the Administration on 

the second round of recruitment for the President’s position currently underway in terms of recommendations they 

had, but on the first round he thought the Governor’s disapproval with Mark Eves was the extent from the input, 

aside from the lunch with the Commissioner.  Sen. Johnson asked if, after considering all of the input in the 

process, the Board, having the sole authority to make that decision, chose to hire Mark Eves as their next 

president.  Mr. Moore said yes.   

 

Rep. Sanderson said in OPEGA’s Report there is reference to loss of donations to the School and some negative 

correspondence as a result of what occurred.  She asked if all the negative correspondence was in opposition to 

the Governor expressing his displeasure.  Mr. Moore said it was predominately in lack of approval for GWH to 

ignore their fiduciary duties and to stand up to the Governor.   

 

Rep. Sanderson noted that some people have pulled their donations to the School and asked what donations those 

would be.  Mr. Moore said GWH did get letters from previous donors saying they will no longer support the 

School.  He said there are a number of factors involved, but they are trending below where they had expected to 

be in donations.  She asked if Mr. Moore could provide the GOC with copies of the letters with identifying 

criteria redacted, so the Committee could see the tone of the letters.  He said he would find out if that can be done 

and will get back to the Committee. 

 

Sen. Gerzofsky asked if the Board had ever reached out to the Administration in the past as to who was acceptable 

and who was not acceptable to hire.  Mr. Moore said no.  The Board and the School had a dialogue with the 

Governor, but that would not be part of it.  Sen. Gerzofsky said often Boards will have conversations with 

different members of the Administration about upcoming prospects, he knew that had been done in the past and 

asked if that had been done this time.  Mr. Moore said the candidates GWH received had nothing to do with the 

Governor’s Office.  He said one thing the Board did, in the most recent recruitments for both the Principal and 

Executive Director positions, was to look for folks who would have the ideal credentials and encourage them to 

apply.  They did beat the bushes to try to get the applicants that would have more of the things the Board was 

looking for, somebody that might not normally be looking for a job but would be an excellent hire.  Sen. 

Gerzofsky asked Mr. Moore if the Board at any other time gave the Administration the opportunity to veto any of 

the names of the people being considered for a position.  Mr. Moore said no.  The one conversation with the 

Commissioner early on was only to diplomatically present the notion that Mark Eves was their selection.   
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Sen. Davis referred to donations to GWH, or schools of that type, and asked if the donations were public 

information.  Mr. Moore did not think so, but will check and get back to the Committee.   

 

Sen. Davis referred back to the lunch Mr. Moore had with Commissioner Desjardin and asked if he might have 

said do you want the job.  Mr. Moore said he could have asked if he was interested.  Sen. Davis asked if the 

Commissioner could have taken that differently.  It was Mr. Moore’s view that he had not made an offer, but he 

did leave it open so that perception might have been there.  He said he wouldn’t have gone back to the Board with 

that recommendation.   

 

Sen. Davis asked if Mr. Moore had any other direct meetings with the Commissioner.  Mr. Moore said he might 

have met with him one other time or once with the Governor.  He said Commissioner Desjardin had a sincere 

interest in GWH.       

 

Sen. Diamond asked if he feels that the School was threatened to the point it would be closed.  Mr. Moore said 

they felt if they did not have the State funding that could potentially trigger a series of events that would 

conceivable result in the School closing down, and that is why the Board, as fiduciaries, took the steps that they 

did.   

 

Rep. Campbell asked if the Board had any dialogue about concerns that Speaker Eves had basically been in 

opposition of the charter schools over the years.  Mr. Moore said the Board did and ultimately it came out that the 

Speaker is clearly a supporter of GWH.  He said GWH is a bit different than many charter schools with the hands 

on teaching and at risk youth.  The Board did ask him several times about his position and his views were 

consistent with what GWH does.  Rep. Campbell said the Board felt that his fund raising experience was broad 

enough so it did not rely on just his normal contacts.  Mr. Moore said the Board was viewing it not as fund raising 

from the State.  He said GWH went from a million dollar deficit to financial sustainability so they do not want to 

make themselves subject to survival by the political process and is working very hard to continue on that 

trajectory of financial sustainability.  Mr. Moore said GWH will still get support, absent the two year process of 

weaning themselves off of the $530,000, but the goal is not to be too dependent on any one source. The Board’s 

view of Mr. Eves was he is a good fund raiser, is a personable fellow, and is comfortable with people and 

speaking.  Mr. Moore said his view is more on the development side because their goal is to make sure that 

GWH’s sustainability entails the adequate amount of State funding, but nothing more.   

 

Rep. Sanderson asked if the Board did outreach for the position before the March application deadline.  Mr. 

Moore said no, it had been more over the last two months in the second recruitment round.  She asked if GWH 

was doing outreach prior to that time.  Mr. Moore said they probably did minimal outreach.   

 

Rep. Sanderson said in the interview with Mr. Brown, who is a staffer of Speaker Eves, he told the OPEGA staff 

that it was the Interim President who suggested that he reach out to Speaker Eves, in the last part of March to let 

him know that the job was available .  She asked if that would have been outreach.  Mr. Moore said he did not 

have any information on that to be able to answer.   

 

Rep. Mastraccio asked if, absent the insertion of the Executive Branch into a hiring process that OPEGA 

characterized as fair and thorough, Mark Eves would be the President of GWH today.  Mr. Moore said if GWH 

had not been in jeopardy of losing the State funding he thinks Mark Eves would be the President.   

 

Members of the GOC thanked Mr. Moore for attending the meeting and answering their questions.  Chair Katz 

reminded everybody that Mr. Moore was at the meeting voluntarily and the Committee had learned a lot from the 

information he provided.        
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-   Public Comment Period 

 

Testifying but did not provide a written copy of their testimony:   

 

 Rep. Helen Rankin, Chris Myers Asch, Davey Crockett, David Travers, Deb Fahy, Barbara Moore, Harold 

Booth, Mike Wiley, Suzanne Hedrick, Will Neils, and Meredith Ares. 

 

Testifying and providing a written copy of their testimony: 

 

 Rep. Jeff McCabe on behalf of Howard Trotzky, Rep. Jeffrey Evangelos, Rep. Benjamin Chipman, Rep. 

Janice Cooper, Brian Hodges, Cushing Samp, Jeanie Coltart, Alan Tibbetts, Becky Halbrook, James St.Pierre, 

Jim Ramsey, Hendrik Gideonse, and William J. Brown.  

 

Written testimony received, but not spoken to at public comment period: 

 

Susan Bloomfield, Andrew Cadot, Mary Chouinard, Walter Eno, Judith Farley, Lianne Mitchell, Elisabeth  

Ramsey, Charles Sims, Ed Spencer and Edward and Diane Potter.  

 

Copies of the written testimony are attached to the Meeting Summary. 

 

Chair Katz closed the Public Comment Period at 12:24 p.m. 

 

RECESS 
 

Chair Katz recessed the Government Oversight Committee at 12:25 p.m.  
 

RECONVENED   
 

Chair Katz reconvened the GOC meeting at 12:40 p.m. 

 

- Committee Work Session 
 

Director Ashcroft noted that several things were suggested to the GOC at the meeting as possible actions they 

might take.  The first, and most relevant to the GWH Information Brief, was the suggestion that the GOC issue 

subpoenas, or invite other people, to a meeting to get to the rest of the facts.  That would be one action the 

Committee could potentially take.  The other thing that was suggested was to have someone, the AG’s Office or 

special prosecutor, determine whether there has been any crimes actually committed with regard to the GWH 

matter.  Director Ashcroft said in the past the Committee has sometimes referred matters to the AG’s Office, or 

at least talked about whether there needs to be a discussion with someone with legal expertise, as to whether any 

of the laws that have been mentioned as applicable are applicable, and if so, what additional information, if any, 

might be relevant to making that determination.  She said beyond that there was a suggestion to increase the 

scope of the work the GOC is doing to determine whether there are other situations the Governor has been 

involved in that would further push the case for additional action of accountability toward the Governor.  Some 

individuals who spoke at the meeting already had firm examples in mind of things they felt already met that 

test.  Director Ashcroft said the last action that was suggested to the Committee was moving the matter forward 

to the House of Representatives for their consideration of possible impeachment proceedings against the 

Governor and the whole process that would evolve from that. 

 

Director Ashcroft said some folks suggested that the GOC might want to poll the rest of the Legislative body 

before determining some of the more significant steps.   

 

Sen. Diamond thought the Committee had done a good job in remembering that they are not there to make 

judgments, but to gather facts and to get as much information as possible.  He said when Mr. Moore came 
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before the GOC today he demonstrated the value of an interaction and is why he thought it was important that 

Cynthia Montgomery and Aaron Chadbourne be at a meeting to answer questions.  Sen. Diamond did not think 

they will come to a GOC meeting unless they are subpoenaed and therefore, made the following motion:   

          

Motion:  That the GOC issue subpoenas to Cynthia Montgomery and Aaron Chadbourne.  (Motion by Sen. 

Diamond, second by Rep. Mastraccio.) 

 

Discussion: 

 

Rep. Mastraccio asked if it was anticipated that Commissioner Desjardin would be at the next GOC meeting.  

Chair Katz said he spoke with the Commissioner a few days ago who said he wanted to be at today’s meeting, 

but was just medically unable to be here.   

 

Rep. McClellan asked if there was anything Committee members needed to know if subpoenas are issued.  

Director Ashcroft said there is another piece of statute that comes into play once the GOC issues subpoenas.  

That statute is the Legislative Investigating Committee Statute and by virtue of issuing the subpoenas, which the 

GOC has the authority to do under OPEGA’s statute already, it dovetails into that statute.  There are procedures 

laid out and rights of the witnesses, etc. that occur when the process is started.  She said the GOC has 

subpoenaed people in the past.   

 

Chair Katz noted that if the GOC did wish to issue subpoenas that would be all the Committee needed to vote 

on at today’s meeting and then could discuss the subject of being an investigatory committee at the beginning of 

their next meeting.  Director Ashcroft agreed and said the GOC would have to already be using those 

procedures when the individuals come to the meeting under subpoena.  She would work with the Committee to 

make sure they were clear about what the procedures were.   

 

Rep. Sanderson said not being familiar with how the Committee goes through the subpoena process she would 

not vote to issue a subpoena to anybody before she had a clear understanding of what that process is. 

 

Director Ashcroft said a subpoena is drafted and signed by the Committee Chairs and sent to the individuals 

who have been asked to appear in the subpoena telling them the date, time, etc. that the GOC has asked them to 

come.  A response is received back from them.  So far the GOC has not had anyone that has been subpoenaed 

not come to a meeting, but there is a question of what would happen if they refused.  She said there is a process 

laid out in the Investigating Committee Statute that allows the GOC to take additional Court action.  Director 

Ashcroft said individuals come to the meeting, the Committee Chair will put them under oath if that is 

something the Committee decides it wants to do, which will be another decision for the GOC about wanting to 

do the questioning under oath.  The individuals are allowed to have attorneys present while they are being 

questioned.  There are some decisions to be made as to the degree to which it is a public proceeding in terms of 

being sent out over the air waves.  She said the GOC has always proceeded with the full public process, but the 

witnesses, under the Investigating Committee Statute, do have some rights to weigh in on that.  It is a question 

and answer session and the GOC talks about what they want to do with the information gathered.   

 

Director Ashcroft said, depending on what the GOC feels it wants to pursue for information, there is a group of 

people beyond Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Chadbourne that would be relevant to a couple of places outlined in 

its Brief that OPEGA was still unclear on.  The GOC has not asked those individuals, other than the 

Commissioner, to come voluntarily yet, and in the past the GOC has asked “x, y and z” to be at the meeting 

voluntarily.  If they say they are not voluntarily coming, the Committee would take a vote on issuing subpoenas 

to them so the Committee could get everyone at the same meeting.   

 

Rep. Campbell thought OPEGA did a good job in their work during the Information Brief and wondered how 

much more information could be gotten out of Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Chadbourne.  He noted that having 

Mr. Moore at the meeting was great for clarity.   
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Rep. Mastraccio agreed with Director Ashcroft about there may be other individuals the GOC may want to 

invite to a meeting who might bring clarity, especially in light of the letter that was sent by Ms. Montgomery, 

and in her view, misinterpreting what the Report actually said.  She would be in favor of requesting other 

people come to the meeting, but does not want the matter to continue another month and then keep going.  Rep. 

Mastraccio was in favor of issuing the two subpoenas and that other subpoenas be issued if individuals invited 

to the meeting decline to attend.   

 

Rep. Duchesne noted that the public, in their comments at the meeting, wanted the GOC to move forward and 

did not want the Committee to be stonewalled in finding the facts that they were charged to find.  He thinks that 

is the minimum expectation given by the public.  He said the insufficiency of putting questions in writing and 

having them answered has also has been demonstrated because what the GOC received from Commissioner 

Desjardin was after the fact justification and did not relate to the time line.  The GOC needs to have the ability 

to have questions and answers in person. 

  

Sen. Johnson said the pending motion was appropriate and the Committee should be identifying other people 

they would like to have at the next meeting.  Those individuals should be invited, but for expediency, it would 

be wise, if they do not agree to come willingly, that the Committee members’ vote includes authorizing the 

Chairs to subpoena them so they will be at the next meeting.   

 

Sen. Burns was not sure that anything new would be gleaned from Ms. Montgomery or Mr. Chadbourne and he 

thinks they have a legitimate reason for not coming to a GOC meeting.  Just because they are not named as 

litigants in the civil suit does not mean that they do not have information that could be extracted that may 

possibly be detrimental to whatever is going on in the pending suit.  He did not know what new information 

would be gleaned from them, and the other individuals the Committee is talking about inviting to the next 

meeting.  Sen. Burns said there was a lot of anxiety about the matter and there are a lot of people who want to 

culminate what they feel has been several years of mismanagement of the Blaine House and Governor’s Office.  

He understood that and had some of the same anxieties, but he was not elected the Governor and those 

individual acts have to rise and fall on their own merits.  Sen. Burns said if there had been better judgment on 

the part of all parties involved, the matter could have been avoided.  He did not believe that the GWH Board did 

not realize the dangers, or pitfalls, they were getting into in hiring Speaker Eves.  He said what the 

Administration did was probably not what he would have done, but he has not seen any evidence yet to show it 

was illegal.  Sen. Burns said the Governor and Speaker Eves are two prominent people in the State of Maine.  

They conduct themselves differently, have different goals, but he has worked with both of them and has seen 

both accomplish some good things and has seen both do things he would not do.  He said everyone on the GWH 

Board knew some of the situation of what was going on in State Government and the Legislature.  He said it 

was a bad scene for the State of Maine and GWH, but he has not seen where anything has been done that 

requires the Legislature to act moving forward.  Sen. Burns said he does not like a lot of things he is seeing 

going on in Maine and the federal government, but he did not think the GOC was the proper venue to try to 

undo the series of mistakes that were made.  He was not going to support pursuing something that he thinks is 

going to cause more grief and bad will for the State and GWH and produce no viable and reasonable results.  

Sen. Burns said because of that he would not support the subpoenas.   

 

Chair Kruger believed that the GOC was on solid ground per the Constitution and statute and had 

Representatives at the meeting asking the Committee to do this.  He did not believe the Governor’s answer of 

“because I said so” passes Constitutional muster in the question of equal branches of government and he was in 

support of the pending motion.   

 

Sen. Gerzofsky said he was supporting the pending motion because he has questions.  He asked his questions to 

Mr. Moore, but he wants to understand more about how decisions were made.  Sen. Gerzofsky noted that both 

individuals had an opportunity to come to today’s GOC meeting, as Mr. Moore did, but declined so he thinks 

subpoenaing them is the only recourse he has as a legislator.   

 

Rep. Duchesne said he was focusing on the fact-finding portion of the GOC’s mission.  He said a decision was 

made about public money, a lot of people testified at the meeting that it constituted misuse of public money and 
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abuse of power.  He said maybe it does, or doesn’t, but he is trying to get to the facts that will lead to that 

conclusion and there are some gray areas that have not been discussed.   Rep. Duchesne said the Governor said I 

did it, why wouldn’t I, but the Acting Commissioner of DOE explained that he was acting on the 

Administration’s concerns, much appeared to be in his own discretion, and it is not clear what the nexus was 

between what the Governor took credit for doing versus what the Commissioner did on his own.  He said that 

has not been completely fleshed out so there is a set of facts that could help.  Rep. Duchesne referred to the 

Cabinet meeting that individuals have fuzzy memories of and that was disturbing to him.  

 

Sen. Johnson said he had questions about how the decision to pull back a payment that was already in the 

process occurred and the GOC needs to have people before them that were involved.  He said regardless of 

whether communication from the Governor is handwritten, or not, when the substance of the communication 

involves exercising a power that exists, not in the person, but in the Office, that it is an official communication.  

He has multiple questions he would like to have answers to and thinks it is appropriate that the GOC exercises 

its power that falls uniquely on this body to compel people to come before them and provide answers to the 

questions raised.  He would be supporting the pending motion.   

 

Rep. McClellan agreed with Sen. Burns’ comments and said he has not yet seen anything criminal that took 

place by the Governor.     

 

Rep. McClellan asked if Ms. Montgomery was the Governor’s lawyer.  Director Ashcroft said Ms. Montgomery 

is the Chief Counsel for the Governor and the Governor’s Office.  The Governor has hired an independent 

attorney to represent him in the civil suit so she is not his attorney in that suit.  He asked, given Ms. 

Montgomery’s role of being the Governor’s attorney, how much can the subpoena compel her to speak if she 

chooses not to.  Chair Katz said Ms. Montgomery declined to come to the GOC meeting for certain articulated 

reasons, none of which had anything to do with Rep. McClellan’s question.  He said secondly should the GOC 

decide to move ahead, she is entitled to have counsel at a GOC meeting.  Rep. McClellan noted that the 

Governor does not send his staff to meetings during the legislative Interim and that is not particular to just the 

GOC meeting. 

 

Director Ashcroft noted that in some situations in the past when the GOC has subpoenaed people, it is not 

necessarily because people did not want to come willingly and answer questions.  They requested being 

subpoenaed so that they knew that they had to answer the questions and thereby had protection from retribution.   

 

Sen. Diamond said that when he made the pending motion he did not do so lightly.  He said it was a very 

serious issue and the GOC is a very unique Committee, noting that this is the third time he has served on the 

GOC and each time as they faced very delicate, serious and sensitive cases, the Committee had always been 

stalwart in sticking to wanting to get the information and that was his motivation. The GOC heard from the 

public and their testimony was 100 percent on one side of the issue.  In fairness, there is probably another side, 

but some people could not be at the meeting.  Sen. Diamond noted that Mr. Moore’s interaction with the 

members of the Committee caused greater clarification as to what happened in his particular role.  Sen. 

Diamond is convinced that having both Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Chadbourne at a meeting will add to the 

Committee’s goal and responsibility to the Legislature and public to get to the bottom of the issue. 

 

Rep. Mastraccio said listening to Sen. Burns’ comments that GWH should have known better than to hire Mark 

Eves because they should have known what would happen, points out exactly why the GOC needs to explore 

the matter further.  What kind of culture is that when decisions a foundation is making are because of the fear 

that somebody is going to do something to you?  She thinks there is a lot more to be discovered.   

 

Sen. Burns noted that the GOC saw a good representation at the GOC meeting of one side of the issue.  He said 

there is another side of the issue and referred to the written testimony received from Rep. Timmons that says 

enough is enough and he thinks there are many others who feel the same way.  Sen. Burns did not think he 

would know any more after Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Chadbourne is subpoenaed than he knows now.  The 

GOC knows what happened, the Governor told them what happened, which matched up with what OPEGA 
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reported had happened.  If there is enough information for the Legislature to take action based on what is known 

and what the Governor has admitted, go ahead.  If there isn’t, they should move on to something else.   

 

Sen. Johnson said one of the things the GOC is talking about is not a question of manners, but about the nature 

of governance and governing through fear, and it is the Committee’s responsibility to get to the facts regarding 

the conduct.  Secondly, he thinks there are several things the GOC can learn through further questioning that are 

unclear, particularly where OPEGA got conflicting testimony and no statements from the Governor about what 

happened regarding holding back the quarterly payment to GWH.   

 

Rep. Sanderson agreed with Sen. Burns in one respect that the GOC knows what the Governor’s actions were, 

he has admitted what his actions were, and issuing subpoenas to members of his staff are not going to enlighten 

the Committee further into what his actions were.  She said she has a lot of questions that came to mind today 

and people she would have liked to have heard from, but she didn’t know if bringing them in for questioning 

was going to further the cause and charge of the GOC.  She would have liked to hear from VP of Finance about 

what he said to the Ethics Commission, and from Bill Brown, Glen Cummings, Board members and Speaker 

Eves, but would that further what the GOC was to do.  She did not think so.  Rep. Sanderson thinks the 

Committee has already found the truth and she does not want to be a member of a dirt digging Committee.  She 

thinks the issue is an accumulation of a very sad and unfortunate series of events.  She agreed with Rep. 

McClellan and Sen. Burns in that she did not see where a law had actually been broken.  She will not support 

the motion to subpoena the Governor’s staff because she does not think they will have any more information 

than the GOC already has to further the charge and move the Committee forward.   

 

Chair Katz said he was voting in favor of the pending motion for three reasons.  First, he thinks it is important 

that the GOC separates facts from fiction and in his mind that line is somewhat blurred.  He agreed with what 

Rep. Sanderson said that they do not know whether the testimony of Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Chadbourne will 

add anything, but the reason they don’t know is because they did not agree to be interviewed by the OPEGA 

staff and they did not accept an invitation to appear at today’s GOC meeting.  Chair Katz said they were in the 

middle of the whole incident in communicating with people from GWH and others and the GOC does not know 

what they are going to say.  Their reasons for not appearing at the meeting are not acceptable to him.  They are 

essentially saying there is a lawsuit going on and it would be inappropriate for them to come and testify with a 

pending lawsuit.  Chair Katz said that is the same line of reasoning the GOC heard in the CDC case with the 

document shredding.  The GOC rejected that line of argument then, and were right to do so because those 

people came.  They came under subpoena, the GOC had an opportunity to question them and did learn a lot 

from them and the lawsuit went on.  He said the GOC is supposed to separate facts from fiction and that argues 

in favor of issuing the subpoenas.  The second reason is because the GOC held a public hearing at today’s 

meeting for a reason and that is because the Committee wanted to hear from the public.  He noted people are not 

satisfied where things stand and that certain individuals had refused to attend the meeting to share the 

knowledge they have of the events.  The third reason he said, which is a bit outside of the current matter, is they 

are being told by a separate branch of government that they are not going to cooperate with the Legislature’s 

legitimate work.  The GOC can accept that, or can say no that is not acceptable and stand up for the integrity of 

the institution.  That is what he intends to do with his vote.   

 

Vote: The above Motion passed 8-3.  Voting against the Motion Rep. Sanderson, Sen. Burns and Rep. 

McClellan.  Sen. Davis was absent for the vote.   

 

Chair Katz said subpoenas will be issued to Ms. Montgomery and Mr. Chadbourne.   

 

Rep. Campbell said he did not think it was time to subpoena other individuals.  If the Committee had an interest 

in others attending a meeting, they should be asked.  Director Ashcroft said that was what was talked about 

earlier.  However, in order to not hold up the process the GOC sometimes has invited individuals and they are 

asked to respond by a particular day of whether or not they are willing to come.  If they are  not, the Committee 

has pre-voted to issue subpoenas so the GOC did not have to have another meeting and then have that 

discussion again. 
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Chair Kruger would like to invite Commissioner Desjardin to the next meeting, but would like to have it 

confirmed that he will be there without being subpoenaed.  Director Ashcroft said an invitation will be sent to 

him and if he refuses to attend then the GOC will have to decide whether members want to subpoena him.   

 

Sen. Diamond would like to have Bill Brown, a GWH Board member, come to the next GOC meeting.  Chair 

Katz asked if that was the pleasure of the Committee and they all responded it was.   

 

Chair Kruger noted that Mr. Brown spoke with OPEGA staff and asked Director Ashcroft if there was anything 

further she would need to know from him.  Director Ashcroft thought it important to decide what it is that the 

Committee was trying to get for additional facts.  She said, for example, there are inconsistent stories about the 

reason the check was withheld and OPEGA said in its Brief that it is unclear whether the Governor gave any 

directive to do that.  Inviting a certain set of people could answer that question.  Director Ashcroft could not 

think of any questions that OPEGA still had regarding Mr. Brown’s involvement, but some of the GOC 

members have the pending question about whether he somehow influenced the process to the point that the 

Speaker was hired when he should not have been.   What OPEGA saw regarding the hiring process was a well-

documented and thorough, structured process that had involvement of a lot of people at many different levels at 

GWH, but if GOC feels they need to know more, they should invite Mr. Brown. 

 

Sen. Diamond said his request to invite Bill Brown to a GOC meeting was because he is part of the Speaker’s 

staff and he thinks it is fair that the Committee gets a chance to ask questions for the same reason they want to 

ask questions of other people.   

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite Bill Brown to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  (Motion by 

Sen. Diamond, second by Rep. McClellan.) 

 

Discussion: 

 

Rep. Duchesne said some people might view the chance to speak to the GOC as a good opportunity for 

individuals to clear their own names.   

 

Sen. Johnson said the question of the Board arriving at a decision on who to hire is not what the GOC/OPEGA 

is investigating.  The review is in regard to the process by which funding to the GWH was altered and 

influenced.  Although someone might want to come before the GOC to clear their name, he did not think it is 

relevant to the facts in the review.   

 

Chair Katz said he would be voting against the pending motion because the focus is not on whether the Speaker 

was, or was not, qualified to be the President and what were his relative merits compared to other candidates for 

the position.   

 

Rep. Campbell thought it may have something to do with it in terms of the evolution of the original job 

description.   

 

Rep. Sanderson said the Governor has been a stalwart supporter of GWH since the Legislature voted on it in the 

125
th
 Legislature.  His actions are what is under question and his obvious distress over the hiring of someone 

vigorously opposed to the School is the catalyst for the entire event.  She thought it was relevant to understand 

the series of events that led up to the hiring of Speaker Eves.  Rep. Sanderson said in that regard it is important 

to have Mr. Brown come to the GOC meeting so he can clarify the time line of when Mr. Cummings told him 

about the job.   

 

Chair Katz noted that he would be changing his vote because he realized Sen. Burns, who had to go to another 

meeting, would be voting to have Mr. Brown come and Sen. Davis, who got called away for a family 

emergency, feels strongly about having Mr. Brown attend.   
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Vote:   The above Motion passed 7-3.  Voting against the Motion - Sen. Johnson, Rep. Mastraccio and Chair 

Kruger.  Sen. Burns and Sen. Davis were absent for the vote.   

    

Rep. Sanderson would like to invite the VP for Finance who indicated to the Ethics Commission that GWH’s 

finances would continue to be stable with or without the State’s funding, but the Committee heard from Mr. 

Moore that it was not.  Director Ashcroft said Mr. Jurdak was at GWH on an interim basis and is no longer 

there.  It was her understanding that he goes away in the fall so she would want to know what the GOC would 

want to do if they decide to invite him and he is not physically able to attend.  Rep. Sanderson asked if it would 

be appropriate to send him a letter asking why he told Ethics that GWH would be stable without the State 

funding, yet clearly that was not the case.  Director Ashcroft said the steps that Mr. Jurdak took when he got 

that inquiry, which he fielded because the Interim President was not available, including talking with the 

Director of Admissions at MeANS and it seemed like the whole focus was on trying to determine what impact 

that funding would have on the student population in that span of time of the biennium.  He understood from the 

Director of Admissions there would not be a big impact on the number of students that would still be attending 

the School.  Mr. Jurdak, in his comments to OPEGA, did not indicate that his response to the Ethics 

Commission includes considering how it would impact the overall plan to advance enrollment to 210 students, 

which is the area where the Harold Alfond Foundation and Chairman Moore had concerns that it was going to 

stop the momentum of the School in being able to attract those students.  Director Ashcroft said her observation 

from listening to both points is that they were coming at it from a different perspective.  Mr. Jurdak’s 

perspective was that it was not an immediate concern for the School.  He felt he had ideas about how they 

would get by without the $530,000, but the impact on the Alfond grant was not part of what he was considering 

at that time.  Rep. Sanderson withdrew her request.   

 

Rep. Mastraccio would like to invite Rich Abramson, Sara Vanderwood and Jay Nutting.  She said Jay Nutting, 

GWH’s Board member and lobbyist Sara Vanderwood seemed to be in the middle of a lot stuff and Rich 

Abramson because that is who Mr. Moore said he heard for the first time that there was no support and she 

would like to know where that chain was.  She noted that Commissioner Desjardin was already on the list.   

 

Chair Katz asked if the three people Rep. Mastraccio referred to were for invitations or invitations with 

subpoenas to follow.  Rep. Mastraccio said they should be invited.  She is also concerned about the fact that 

some people may fear retribution or retaliation so if they feel that they cannot attend and are not coming to the 

meeting, then they should be subpoenaed.   

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite and then subpoena in the absence of acceptance, Rich Abramson.  (Motion by 

Rep. Mastraccio, second by Sen. Johnson.) 

 

Discussion:  
 

Rep. Sanderson said she would be in favor of any invitations, but is not inclined to vote for any subpoenas at 

this time.  Rep. Mastraccio withdrew her motion to subpoena.   

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite Rich Abramson to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  (Motion 

by Rep. Mastraccio, second by Sen. Johnson, passed 8-1.  Chair Katz voting against the motion.)    

 

Motion:   That the GOC invite Sara Vanderwood to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  

(Motion by Rep. Mastraccio, second by Sen. Diamond, passed 8-1.  Chair Katz voting against the motion.)    

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite Jay Nutting to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  (Motion by 

Rep. Mastraccio, second by Sen. Diamond, passed 7-2.  Sen. Johnson and Chair Katz voting against the 

motion.)    

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite Acting Commissioner Tom Desjardin to the next Government Oversight 

Committee meeting.  (Motion by Sen. Diamond, second by Rep. Mastraccio, passed unanimous vote 9-0.)    
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Director Ashcroft said if the Committee wanted to inquire about what went on in the Lead Team meeting, the 

individuals involved are Suzan Beaudoin, Director of School Finance and Operations; Debra Plowman, Director 

of Policy and Programs; and Sarah Forester, who is with the Attorney General’s Office and who represents the 

Department of Education.   

 

Chair Katz cautioned the Committee that the length of their next proceeding is getting longer.  He asked if there 

was a motion in respect to Ms. Beaudoin.  Director Ashcroft reminded the GOC that Ms. Beaudoin was the 

person who was involved in withholding the payment.   

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite Suzan Beaudoin to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  

(Motion by Rep. Mastraccio, second by Sen. Diamond.) 

 

Discussion:  The Committee discussed whether to add that Ms. Beaudoin be subpoenaed if she declined their 

invitation, Rep. Mastraccio withdrew her motion.   

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite and then subpoena in the absence of acceptance, Suzan Beaudoin.  (Motion by 

Rep. Mastraccio, second by Sen. Johnson.) 

 

Discussion:  Sen. Diamond said he liked to believe that the people invited to the GOC meeting will come and, 

for example, the reason he had invitation only to Commissioner Desjardin is because he assumed he will be 

well enough to attend.  The reason he was not at this meeting was because he had legitimate reasons.  He would 

like to continue that assumption as the Committee moves along. 

 

Vote:  The above motion failed 2-6.  Voting in favor Rep. Mastraccio and Sen. Johnson. 

 

 Motion:  That the GOC invite Suzan Beaudoin to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  

(Motion by Rep. Sanderson, second by Sen. Diamond.  Passed 8-1.  Chair Katz voted against the motion.). 

 

Chair Katz asked if there was a motion with respect to Sarah Forster, Assistant Attorney General. No motion 

was made. 

 

Chair Katz asked if there was a motion with respect to Debra Plowman.  No motion was made. 

 

Director Ashcroft noted that the other unclear place in OPEGA’s Information Brief was whether the Governor 

personally communicated to anyone at GWH, or the Harold Alfond Foundation, specifically that funding would 

be cut.  The two people who took calls directly from the Governor were Rich Abramson and Greg Powell of the 

Harold Alfond Foundation.   

 

Motion:  That the GOC invite Greg Powell to the next Government Oversight Committee meeting.  (Motion by 

Sen. Johnson, second by Rep. Mastraccio.  Passed 8-1, Chair Katz voted against the motion.) 

 

Rep. McClellan felt like the GOC was fishing.   

 

Motion:  That the Government Oversight Committee recess the Work Session on the State Funding for Good 

Will-Hinckley Information Brief.  (Motion by Sen. Diamond, second by Rep. Mastraccio, passed unanimous 

vote.) 

 

- Committee Vote   

  

 Not discussed.  
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NEW BUSINESS 
  

None 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

•  Riverview Psychiatric Center Staffing Concerns 

 

-  Jay Harper, Superintendent   

 -   Justice Daniel Wathen, Court Master 

 

Director Ashcroft said Justice Wathen was on call and will come to the meeting if the Committee wishes.  

She said Mr. Harper was not going to be joining the GOC today, but was going to be providing the 

answers in writing to the questions forwarded to him.   

 

The GOC agreed to carry this item over to a future meeting. 

  

• Review Status of Open Recommendations From OPEGA’s 2006 Report on Economic 

 Development Programs in Maine 

 

 Not discussed. 

 

•  GOC Consideration of Recommendations on Records Retention and Management From Working Group     

  Report 

 

 -  Monthly Report Back From Secretary of State Dunlap on Records Retention and Management Efforts 
    

This item was not discussed, but Secretary of State Matthew Dunlap provided his written Interim Report 

Regarding Compliance with Public Records Laws.  (Secretary Dunlap’s Report is attached to the Meeting 

Summary.)   

   

-  Response From GOC Letter to Governor’s Office 

 

  Not discussed.  

      

REPORT FROM DIRECTOR 
  

• Status of Current Projects in Progress 

 

Director Ashcroft had told the GOC that OPEGA was planning on having a report to them on the Riverview 

Psychiatric Center in November, but said they had hit a snag with regard to getting access to records at 

Riverview even though OPEGA said they would take them de-identified and redacted.  Discussions have been 

going back and forth between DHHS and the Attorney General’s Office trying to understand the federal 

regulations that would apply and whether or not they would allow OPEGA access to the records.  She said there 

are several federal regulations that appear relevant.  Director Ashcroft said DHHS is not trying to be difficult, 

but they feel they are under a microscope with the decertification issue and do not want to make a wrong move 

in allowing OPEGA access to information where it is not clear if they can.  Linda Pistner, Chief Deputy 

Attorney General, and Phyllis Gardiner, Senior Attorney General, has been working on this.  Currently they are 

discussing whether OPEGA should seek a Court Order to have access to the records that would be a way of 

clearing all of the federal regulations.  The AG’s Office is putting that in motion for OPEGA.  Director Ashcroft 

said she does not believe OPEGA will have the Report for the GOC in November as originally planned.   
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Director Ashcroft noted that if OPEGA is delayed much longer with Riverview the staff will begin the planning 

work for the DHHS Licensing and Regulation of Child Care Providers review and possibly also the 

Northern New England Passenger Rail Authority review.   

 

• Staffing 

 

Director Ashcroft reported that OPEGA was still in the hiring mode for two Tax Expenditure Review Team  

Analysts.   

 

Director Ashcroft mentioned that the GOC had wanted to have a work session on the New Markets Tax Credit in  

November.  The Committee thought that would now be delayed and will talk about scheduling it at a future  

meeting.   

 

SUMMARIES OF THE AUGUST 20 AND SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 GOC 

MEETINGS 
 

The Summaries of the August 20 and September 8, 2015 GOC meetings were approved.  (Motion by Sen.  

Diamond, second by Rep. McClellan.  Passed by unanimous vote.)  

 

NEXT GOC MEETING DATE 
  

The next Government Oversight Committee meeting is scheduled for November 12, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The GOC meeting was adjourned by unanimous vote at 2:25 p.m. on a motion by Sen. Diamond, second by Rep.  

Campbell.   
































































































































































